
One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 
 

 
  

 
  

 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Monday, September 23, 2019 

6:00 p.m. – Central Office 
A G E N D A  

 
 

 I.     Call to Order – Bailey Odom – India Hook Elementary School    
   Approval of Agenda   (Policy BEDB) 

 (Under consent agenda, all action items will be voted on after one motion and second to approve them without   

 discussion.  If a board member wants any action item discussed or voted on separately, the board member, before the  

 agenda is approved, must ask that the action item be moved to the discussion item section.) 
  
 
      II.     Recognitions 

A. Recognition of Officer Tonya Bennett, SC SRO of the Year   
B. Recognition of Atrium Partnership 

C. Recognition of School Safety Program Grant 
D. Recognition of Max SC Pass, SC Ready Scorers  
 

III.    Citizen Participation  
 
     IV.    Consent Action Agenda 

A. Approval of Minutes 
1. August 12, 2019 work session 

2. August 26, 2019 business meeting 
B. Approval of Personnel Recommendations (Policy BDD) 
C. Approval of Out of Continental U.S. Field Study Request (NHS) 
 

  V.    Action Agenda   
 A. Approval of Policy GBED – Tobacco Free Workplace – 2nd read 

 B. Approval of Policy JICG – Tobacco Use by Students – 2nd read  
 C. Approval of Section “C” Policies – General School Administration - 2nd read 

 *CA – Administration Goals / Priority Objectives 
 *CB – School Superintendent 
 *CBA – Qualifications of the Superintendent 
 *CBC – Superintendent Powers and Responsibilities 
 *CBD – Superintendent’s Contract 
 *CBG – Superintendent’s Professional Development 
 *CBI – Evaluation of Superintendent 
 *CC – Administrative Organization  
 *CCA – Organization Chart 
 *CCB – Line and Staff Relations 
 *CF – School Building Administration 

 *CFA – School Principals / Building Administration 

 



One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 
 

 
 

 
 *CFC – Assignment and Transfer of School Administrators 

 *CHA/CHB – Development of Administrative Rules / Board Review  
 *CH – Policy Implementation 

 *CHD – Administration in the Absence of Policy 
 *CM – School District Annual Report 
 
D.  Approval of 1st Set of Section “D” Policies – Fiscal Management – 1st read 
 *DA – Fiscal Management Goals / Priority Objectives 

 *DB – Annual Budget 
 *DBD – Determination of Budget Priorities 

 *DBF – Budget Hearings and Reviews 
 *DBG – Budget Adoption Process 

 *DFAC – Fund Balance 
       *ED/DID, ED/DID-R, ED/DID-E(1), ED/DID-E(2) – Materials & Equip. Inventories Mgmt 

      *DJGA – Sales Calls and Demonstrations 
      *DKA – Payroll Procedures/Schedules 

      *DM – Cash in School Buildings 
      *DN – School Properties Disposition 

  
E.  Naming Facilities 

 
     VI.  Communications   

VII.  Report of the Superintendent 

A. Announcements  
 

VIII.  Review of School Board Work Sessions – September 9 
 

IX.  Other and Future Business 
 

X.  Executive Session(s) –  (Policy BEC) 
                   ~Contractual Matters: 
   *Intergovernmental Agreement 
 

XI.  Action as required from Executive Session(s) -  (Policy BEC) 
 
 

XII.  Adjournment 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: September 18, 2019  
SUBJECT: Call to Order at September 23rd School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Bailey Odom, a 5th grader at India Hook Elementary School, will provide the “Call to Order” at the 
September 23rd school board meeting.  
 
Bailey:  

• Is active in Showtime Theater Company and will perform in Madagascar, Jr. in Spring 2020 
• He is involved in the school’s Let Me Run club 
• He is involved in FCA and is on its leadership council 

 
Parents: Chris and Allison Odom 
 
Siblings in Rock Hill Schools: Twin brother Carter is also a 5th grader at India Hook 
 
Principal:  Mr. Christopher Roorda 
 
Mailing Address: 
252 Catoctin Road 
Rock Hill, SC 29732 

Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008   -   Fax:  981-1094 



	

	

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: September 18, 2019  
SUBJECT: Recognitions for September 23rd School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A. Recognition of Officer Tonya Bennett, SC SRO of the Year 

A longtime deputy from the York County Sheriff’s Office has been named the top school resource officer in 
South Carolina. Tonya Bennett was awarded the Eric Bamberg School Resource Officer of the Year for the 
state in 2019. The award is named for a late officer from the Bamberg Police Department known for his 
devotion to student and staff safety. Bennett also won top honors for the upstate region of South Carolina. 
York County Sheriff Kevin Tolson said staff and students both respect and love Bennett for her devotion to 
the school, its people and the safety of all on campus. Bennett won the awards after she was nominated by 
school staff. One letter of nomination praised her as “an exemplary individual with a commitment to law 
enforcement and more importantly to the public in which she serves.” Staff at the school wanted Bennett to 
be recognized for her “self-motivation, dependability and determination over the years. This is the second 
consecutive year a SRO working with our schools has won the state award. In 2018, former Rock Hill Police 
Department Sgt. Mike Johnson won the award as top resource officer in South Carolina. As you know, Mr. 
Johnson is now on our Director of Safety and Security.  
 

B. Recognition of Atrium Healthcare  
Identified as an opportunity to improve sports medicine support for our middle and high school athletics 
programs by the district’s Athletics Equity Committee, Rock Hill Schools has entered into a partnership with 
Atrium Healthcare to meet the need. As part of our agreement, Atrium is providing a Certified Athletic Trainer 
to each high school. Atrium becomes the district’s fourth stadium anchor partner and receives signage at our 
athletic facilities and opportunities to advertise at district stadium and gymnasium events.  The additional 
trainers will provide support during the summer months and will be assist with middle school athletes as 
schedules permit.  Ms. Jennifer Gardner, Director Atrium Health Musculoskeletal Institute Outreach is here to 
represent our new anchor partner, Atrium Health. 
 

C. Recognition of Safety and Security Team  
We continue to focus on providing a safe and secure learning environment, and in the last year, our Safety 
and Security team wrote a grant to the South Carolina Department of Education seeking additional funding 
and support to expand our School Resource Officer Program. We have received notification that we have 
been awarded funding to hire four additional School Resource Officers, which is the maximum number of 
officers available to be paid for through the grant. We will now work with our partnering law enforcement 
agencies – Rock Hill Police Department and the York County Sheriff’s Office – to secure the additional 
officers. When implemented, each of our high schools will be staffed by an additional SRO and our middle 
schools will be supported by an additional officer on a rotating schedule. Thank you to members of our team 

Marketing & Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 



	

	

Mr. Tony Cox, Mr. Michael Johnson, Mrs. Jill Watts, and former director of safety and security Mr. Kevin 
Wren for working behind the scenes to make this expansion possible.  
 

D. Recognition of Students who Earned Maximum Raw Score on SC READY and SC PASS  
SC READY and SC PASS are statewide assessments to measure college-and career-readiness. The 
standardized tests are aligned to the South Carolina College and Career Ready Standards for grades 3 
through 8. On tests administered last spring, Rock Hill Schools had 19 students achieve a maximum raw 
score on the SC READY math assessment, 1 student earn maximum raw score on SC PASS Social Studies, and 
17 students achieve a maximum raw score on the SC PASS Science assessment. Tonight, we recognize 
students who scored at the highest levels.  
 
Maximum Raw Score on SC READY Mathematics 
Trevor Mills 
Caleb Plummer 
Audrey Nguyens 
Lukas Wendt 
Maxwell Brooks 
Cheyenne Ingle 
Zachary Robbins 

Phuc Nguyen 
Rolando Ramirez-Ramos 
Osma Tanbouz 
James Haas 
Carter Hilton 
Henry Futch 
Annabel Covington 

Jaren Lopez 
Christopher Rollins 
Chase Williams 
Heath Hudson 
Dave Mutuc 

 
 
Maximum Raw Score on SC PASS Social Studies 
William Franklin 

 
Maximum Raw Score on SC PASS Science 
Dane Turck 
Brayden Arrants 
Forest Deming 
Lucy Pollack 
Hannah Andrychowski 
Rolando Ramirez-Ramos 

Parker Guevara 
Grace Harvey 
Williana White 
Bailey Odom 
McCoy Questelle 

 

Daniel Edge 
Braxton Townsend 
Rachelle Anderson 
Lorien Greenlee 
Caleb King 
Evan Youngman 

 



 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE BOARD OF TRUSTEES_______________________ 

 

School Board Work Session   

Monday, August 12, 2019 

Central Office 

 

The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 4:00 p.m. with members present 

as follows: Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Terry Hutchinson, Helena Miller, Robin Owens, and Ann 

Reid.  Brent Faulkenberry participated via conference call.  Chairman Miller called the meeting to order 

and led in a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve the agenda.  Contract 

Negotiations was added to the first Executive Session under Contractual Matters.  The agenda was 

unanimously approved as amended, 7-0.  

 

Chairman Miller stated the local news media was notified of the agenda, in writing, on Friday, June 7, 

2019.   

 

Executive Session 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn open session and enter 

executive session for the following: 

 

~Personnel Matters – Hirings  

~Contractual Matter – Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract Negotiations 

 

This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Robin Owens, to adjourn executive session and 

reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

Action as Required from Executive Session 

A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to adopt and approve a resolution 

and consent to execute certain documents in connection with US Environmental Protection Agency’s 

General Notice Letter and Tolling agreement for the Bennett Landfill Fire Superfund Site in Chester, 

South Carolina, of 09 July 2019, and specifically authorize Superintendent Dr. William “Bill” Cook, Jr. 

of Rock Hill School District Three of York  County to execute such documents on behalf of the district.    

 

This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Ann Reid, to accept the administration’s 

recommendation for Hearing Officer.  

 

This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

School Board Work Session – Page 2 

Monday, August 12, 2019 

Central Office 

 

Recognitions 

~York Electric Cooperative 

Markeus Farrand, key accounts representative, and Marc Howie, vice president of Community 

Development with York Electric Cooperative presented to the District a capital credit check in the 

amount of $5,896.60. 

 

~Batson-Cook Construction 

Batson-Cook Construction was recognized for their partnership with the Rock Hill Schools Education 

Foundation.  Through their second annual billiards tournament, friends and contractors came together 

and raised $25,000 to benefit the Back the Pack program.   

 

~Rock Hill Symphony Orchestra  

Representatives from the Rock Hill Symphony announced  the District is a recipient of a grant from the 

symphony that will place an Artist-in-Residence in each of the district’s Title 1 elementary schools.   

 

Administrative Rule JFAA-R – Admission of Resident Students 

New Administrative Rule JFAA-R, to accompany Policy JFAA – Admission of Resident Students, was 

presented for review and discussion. 

 

Policy GBED – Tobacco-free Workplace and Policy JICG – Tobacco Use by Students – 1st read 

Policy GBED – Tobacco-free Workplace and Policy JICG – Tobacco Use by Students were presented 

for review.  These policies will be on the Action Agenda at the August 26 business meeting for 1st read. 

 

Administrative Rule IKA-R – Grading/Assessment Systems  

Administrative Rule IKA-R – Grading/Assessment Systems was presented for review and discussion. 

 

Section “C” Policies – 1st read 

The following Section C policies were presented for review:   

*Policy CA – Administration Goals/Priority Objectives 

*Policy CB – School Superintendent 

*Policy CBA – Qualifications of the Superintendent 

*Policy CBC – Superintendent Powers and Responsibilities 

*Policy CBD – Superintendent’s Contract 

*Policy CBG – Superintendent’s Professional Development 

*Policy CBI – Evaluation of Superintendent 

*Policy CC – Administrative Organization 

*Policy CCA – Organization Chart 

*Policy CCB – Line and Staff Relations 

*Policy CF – School Building Administration 

*Policy CFA – School Principals / Building Administration 

*Policy CFC – Assignment and Transfer of School Administrators 

*Policy CHA/CHB – Development of Administrative Rules / Board Review 

*Policy CH – Policy Implementation 

*Policy CHD – Administration in the Absence of Policy 



 

School Board Work Session – Page 3 

Monday, August 12, 2019 

Central Office 

 

*Policy CM – School District Annual Report 

 

These policies will be on the Action Agenda at the August 26 business meeting for 1st read. 

 

 

Bond Resolution – 8% SCAGO General Obligation Debt Issuance 

Chief Finance Officer Mrs. Terri Smith stated this bond resolution is authorizing the issuance and sale of  

not to exceed $10,750,000 General Obligation Bonds, in one or more series, and will utilize out 8% debt 

capacity.  This bond resolution is for the purpose of providing funds to pay for the acquisition and 

installation of technology, capital improvements and upgrades, student activity equipment as 

recommended in the 2017 Student Activity Study, and the annual 2016 Acquisition, Use and Security 

Agreement payment.  This bond resolution will not require an increase in tax millage.  Our Debt Service 

millage will remain at 52 mills.  This item will be on the Action Agenda at the August 26 business 

meeting. 

 

e-Learning Days 

Chief of Academics and Accountability Dr. John Jones stated Rock Hill Schools has been selected as 

one of ten school districts in the state to be granted the opportunity to participate in the eLearning Pilot.  

 

Mental Health Update 

Director of Exceptional Student Education Dr. Nancy Turner provided the Board with an update on 

Mental Health Services.    

 

Other and Future Business 

The Board discussed other and future business. 

 

Executive Session 

A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Windy Cole, to adjourn open session and enter 

executive session for the following: 

 

~Continuation of Personnel Matters – Hirings from the earlier executive session and  

~Succession Planning of Master Plan 2020-2030 

  

This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to adjourn executive session and 

reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

Action as Required from Executive Session 

A motion was made by Mildred Douglas, seconded by Windy Cole, to accept the administration’s 

recommendation for Elementary District Math Coach.  

 

This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 



 

School Board Work Session – Page 4 

Monday, August 12, 2019 

Central Office 

 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn the meeting.  This motion was 

unanimously passed 7-0.   

 



 

                                      

 

 

 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Monday, August 26, 2019 

        6:00 p.m. - Central Office 

 

 I. Call to Order and Approval of Agenda 

  The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 6:00 p.m. with members 

present as follows:  Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Brent Faulkenberry, Terry Hutchinson, 

Helena Miller, Robin Owens, and Ann Reid.     

 

Kennedi Carpenter, a fourth grader at Independence Elementary School, provided the “Call to 

   Order” for the meeting.     

 

 Chairman Miller stated that the local news media had been notified of the agenda for this 

meeting, in writing, on Friday, August 23, 2019.   

 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve the agenda.   

The agenda was unanimously approved as presented, 7-0. 

   

II. Recognitions 

A. Introduction of New Administrators 

        Dr. Cook introduced the district’s newest administrators. 

 

B. Recognition of Officer Tonya Bennett, SC SRO of the Year 

Officer Bennett was not able to attend the meeting and will be recognized at a future  

meeting. 

 

C. Recognition of Mrs. Robin Owens, Boardmanship Institute – Level 2 

Mrs. Robin Owens was recognized for reaching Level 2 in the SCSBA Boardmanship 

Institute.         

 

D. Recognition of Mrs. Helena Miller, Boardmanship Institute – Level 4 

Mrs. Helena Miller was recognized for reaching Level 4 in the SCSBA Boardmanship 

Institute. 

 

E. Welcome Back to School Board Photo 

        The Board of Trustees and Superintendent Cook participated in the SCSBA’s Back to School 

        “Your Voice, Your Board” campaign with a group photo using the hashtag 

        #schoolboardstrong.  

   

III. Citizen Participation - None 

 

 

 

 



 

IV. Consent Action Agenda 

On a motion by Mildred Douglas, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, the following topics on the 

consent action agenda were unanimously approved, 7-0: the minutes of the July 22 combined 

work session/business meeting; and, the personnel recommendations as submitted by the 

administration. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

V.  Action Agenda 

A.  Approval of Policy GBED – Tobacco Free Workplace – 1st read 

  A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to approve Policy GBED –  

  Tobacco Free Workplace for 1st read.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0.   

 

B. Approval of Policy JICG – Tobacco Use by Students – 1st read 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve Policy JICG – 

Tobacco Use by Students for 1st read.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0.     

 

C.  Approval of Section “C” Policies – 1st read 

A motion was made by Mildred Douglas, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve, as a group, the 

following Section “C” policies for 1st read: CA, CB, CBA, CBC, CBD, CBG, CBI, CC, CCA, 

CCB, CF (replace with CFA), CFA, CFC, CHA/CHB, CH, CHD (eliminate, covered in 

CBC), CM.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0.     

 

D.  Approval of 8% CAGO General Obligation Debt Issuance 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve the 8% SCAGO 

General Obligation Debt Issuance in a not to exceed amount of $14,250,000.   

 

The bond resolution has been revised since the August 12, 2019 work session to reflect this 

*new* not to exceed amount of $14,250,000.  The revised bond resolution will not require an 

increase in tax millage.  Debit Service millage calculation remains at 52 mills.  This motion was 

unanimously passed, 7-0. 

  

VI. Communications - None 

 

VII. Report of the Superintendent 

A.  Announcements 

Superintendent Cook made the following announcements: 

• Over the past week, our team successfully supported the opening of the 2019-2020 school 

year.  We look forward to sharing with you at our September 9th meeting video highlights 

of our first week.  You are encouraged to connect with the school district on social media 

and follow our hashtag #OneTeamOneMissionOneRockHill where pictures and video clips 

are shared highlighting our vision for 2020, “Can you see it?”  

• Earlier this evening, it was a pleasure to welcome more than 50 community partners and 

volunteers to a reception that was held in their honor for their contributions and service to 

our schools over the past year.  We appreciate each group represented this evening and say 

thank you once again for their efforts to partner with our schools and departments to serve 

the students and teachers of our district.  

• The school district will be closed on Monday, September 2 for Labor Day. 

• On September 10, district leaders will be hosting the first Lunch and Learn in a series of 

informational sessions that will be scheduled throughout the year with key stakeholder 



 

groups in our community.  Our first session welcomes area real estate agents for an 

opportunity to engage in dialogue about our school district and our unique programs that 

set our district apart from others in our area.  Additional sessions will be scheduled with 

representatives from our civic and faith community as well as government leaders. 

• You are encouraged to visit the district’s capital building program, “Build on the Rock,” 

website – www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock  - for more information.  This website 

provides status updates on active and planned construction projects in the district.  On the 

page, viewers can see project descriptions, before and after photographs, and construction 

timelines. 

• The School Board will next meet on Monday, September 9 for its work session and on 

Monday, September 23 for its business meeting.  Both meetings will be streamed on our 

website and available for viewing on-demand immediately following each broadcast.  We 

invite our community to watch  meetings live on our Facebook broadcasts at 

Facebook.com/RockHillSchools.     

 

B. Rock Hill Symphony Presentation 

Dr. Sarah Lynn Hayes and Dr. Elda Franklin, with the Rock Hill Symphony, made a 

presentation to the Board of Trustees on their Symphony in the Schools program.  

 

C. Nursing Services Update 

Mrs. Sadie Kirell, the district’s lead clinical nurse, provided an update on nursing services 

within the district.  

 

D. Summer Programs Update 

Mrs. Mabra Wayman, assistant principal at Belleview Elementary, and Ms. Jaime 

Cochrane, assistant principal at Finley Road Elementary, provided a Read to Succeed 

Summer Reading Camp report for 2018-2019.   

   

Mrs. Jen Morrison, executive director of secondary education, provided a secondary 

summer school report for 2018-2019.   

 

E. Graduation Coaches and Family Outreach Coordinators Update 

Ms. Della Barrett, one of the district’s Family Outreach Coordinators, and Ms. Kiely 

Blake, Graduation Coach at South Pointe High School, shared highlights of their 

respective reports in the Community and Student Services Update.  

 

VIII. Review of School Board Work Sessions – July 22 and August 12 

       Chairman Miller reviewed, for the viewing audience, the topics discussed at the July 22 and 

       the August 12 work sessions.     

 

IX.     Other and Future Business 

    The board discussed other and future business. 

 

X.        Executive Session 

           A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn open 

    session and enter executive session for  

 

    Contractual Matters:  Intergovernmental Agreement; Succession Planning for Master Plan.   

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock


 

 

    This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

    A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to adjourn 

    executive session and reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

  

XI.    Action as Required from Executive Session 

          There was no action taken from executive session.   

 

XII. Adjournment 

       On a motion by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, the Board voted unanimously, 

       7-0, to adjourn the meeting.   

 

 

 

 

 

  ______________________________ 

   Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED:  ________________________________ 

      Chairman   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

             Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

   Monday, August 26, 2019 

 
 

PERSONNEL MATTERS – August 2019 
 

The board affirmed contracts for the following certified employee(s): 

Daniel Jones Charles ............. Applied Technology Center 

Stephanie Clark ..................... Applied  Technology Center 

Jason Gilbert ......................... Applied Technology Center 

Aida Garcia Castro ............... Cherry Park 

Tera Mills .............................. Dutchman Creek/Saluda Trail 

Celycia Robinson .................. Ebinport 

Alissa Stripling ..................... Ebinport 

Candace Connors .................. Exceptional Student Education 

Janiece Jenkins ...................... Exceptional Student Education 

Kayla Pengelski .................... Exceptional Student Education 

Theodus Roach ..................... Exceptional Student Education 

Jessica Wilson ....................... Exceptional Student Education 

Robert Gasparello ................. Mt. Holly 

Virginia McCallister ............. Northside 

Margaret Buddin ................... Northwestern 

Shanequa Clark ..................... Northwestern 

Carolina Furiate .................... Northwestern 

Dara Ross .............................. Northwestern 

Sarah B. Sandifer .................. Northwestern 

Wayne Starkes ...................... Northwestern 

Christine Steinmetz ............... Oakdale 

Cynthia Symons .................... Oakdale 

Emily Beadle ........................ Oakdale 

Hunter McDaniel .................. Raven Academy 

Tyler Anderson ..................... Rawlinson Road 

Jewel Reynolds ..................... Rawlinson Road 

Jill Jenkins ............................ Richmond Drive 

Sean Cunningham ................. Saluda Trail 

James Daigdigan ................... South Pointe 

Mary Grace Jones ................. South Pointe 

Claudia Kanabroski .............. South Pointe 

Joana Suttle ........................... South Pointe 

Katrina Torbert ..................... South Pointe 

Gregory Tolliver ................... South Pointe 

LyAisha Barr ........................ Sullivan 

LyKaisha Barr ....................... Sullivan 

Lily Ann Hilario ................... Sullivan 

Adelfa Lacaya ....................... Sullivan 

Kimberly Wise ...................... Sullivan 

Lisa Derue ............................. Sunset Park 

Tilanesha Manderville .......... Sunset Park 

Abby Cassidy ........................ York Road 

 

 

 



 

AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 
   

Resignations – Certified 

Stephanie Clark ...................... Applied Technology Center 

Amanda Leaphart ................... Belleview 

Anne Love .............................. Castle Heights 

Samantha Feagin .................... Exceptional Student Education 

Kelsey Shoemaker .................. Northwestern 

Julie Cornwell ......................... Oakdale 

Valerie Dixon ......................... Oakdale 

Maquita Hinson ...................... Rawlinson Road 

Noreen Hershelman ................ Rawlinson Road 

Gloria Fiedler ......................... Rock Hill High 

Kristine M. Reid ..................... Saluda Trail 

Justin Sutton ........................... South Pointe 

Sara Zee .................................. South Pointe 

 

Transfers – Certified 

Janetta Morrison ..................... India Hook 

Lihua Tan ............................... Northwestern 

Ina Pascal ................................ Phoenix Academy 

Jennifer Cannon ...................... Sylvia Circle/T3 Program 

Tiffany Burris ......................... York Road 

 

New Employees – Non-Certified 

Page Putnam ........................... Administrative Services 

Carol-Lynn Quinn .................. Ebenezer Avenue Montessori 

Aimee Anderson ..................... Exceptional Student Education 

Jasmyn McDonald .................. Finley Road 

Derrick Amos ......................... Mt. Holly 

Gary Miller ............................. Northwestern 

Keenen Littlejohn ................... Northwestern 

Ebony Able ............................. Old Pointe 

Jada Wilson ............................ Old Pointe 

Ninoska Rodriguez ................. ParentSmart 

Shnetha Dickerson .................. Rawlinson Road 

Katherine Jackson ................... Rock Hill High 

DeLawrence Whitlock ............ Rock Hill High  

Melody Minor ......................... Saluda Trail 

Rhonda Gamble ...................... South Pointe 

Melissa Payne ......................... Sullivan 

Erin Thorne ............................. Sunset Park 

Edward White ......................... Sylvia Circle/T3 Program 

 

Position Eliminated – Non-Certified 

Lindsay Jones ......................... Ebenezer Avenue 

 

Resignations – Non-Certified 

Kim D. Bailey ......................... Central Office / Finance  

Alex Fair ................................. Cherry Park 

Ricky Marshall ....................... Facilities Services 

Larry Stewart .......................... Facilities Services 



 

Kisha Lockhart ....................... Finley Road 

Winter Albohaire .................... Mt. Holly 

Patricia Shipman ..................... Northwestern 

Deedra Witherspoon ............... Rawlinson Road 

 

Transfers – Non-Certified 

Nnaemeka Hardy-Wilson ....... ParentSmart 

Alphonso Jones ....................... Rawlinson Road 

 

 

 

EMPLOYEES WORKING THROUGH SCECG 
 

Administrative/Certified Staff 

Brenda Martin ......................... Belleview 

Angelia Green ......................... Central Office / Personnel 

Janet Morris ............................ Central Office / Personnel 

Melanie Burnette .................... Ebinport 

Juliene Jackson ....................... Finley Road 

Karen Roof ............................. India Hook 

Dr. Jean Dickson .................... Lesslie 

Michael Clarkson ................... Rock Hill High 

 

 

 

Non-Certified Staff 

Timothy Boan ......................... Facilities Services 

Donnie Hill ............................. Facilities Services 

 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT 
 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 
 

PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT 
 

SUMMARY 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE OF YORK COUNTY 

ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

 
1.  BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 
 
            CERTIFIED 

 
New Employees ............................................. (14) 

 
2.  AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 
 
            ADMINISTRATIVE 
 

Resignation ...................................................... (1) 
 
            CERTIFIED 

 
Resignation ...................................................... (1) 
 

3.         NON-CERTIFIED 
 

New Employees ............................................. (11) 
 

Resignations .................................................... (3) 
 

Transfers .......................................................... (3) 
 
4.         EMPLOYEE WORKING THROUGH SCECG 
 

Administrative  .............................................. (1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 

 
NEW EMPLOYEES – CERTIFIED (14) 

 
Thomas Monza Castle Heights Grade six social studies teacher  
Kelly Sporney Exceptional Student Education Special education teacher/spec. prog. behavior  

Meshia Williams Exceptional Student Education Mental health counselor  
Cassady Caudle Finley Road Kindergarten teacher  
Anita Sprague Flexible Learning Center School nurse  
Kacy Johnson Mt. Gallant School nurse  
Sandra Jeter Mt. Holly Kindergarten assistant  
Courtney Young Northside Grade five teacher  
Heather Dillingham Raven Academy Behavior intervention teacher  
Katrina Harris Rawlinson Road Special education teacher/unique pathway II  
Ellen McKinnon Richmond Drive School nurse  
Dorris Frazier South Pointe Math teacher  
Justice Martin South Pointe .5 FTE English teacher  
Kizzy Thompson South Pointe Science teacher  

 
AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 

 
RESIGNATION – ADMINISTRATIVE (1) 

 
William E. Robinson Facilities Services Trades manager 

 
RESIGNATION – CERTIFIED (1) 

 
William Chapman Rawlinson Road Special education teacher/unique pathway II 

 
NEW EMPLOYEES – NON-CERTIFIED (11) 

 
Eric Little Belleview Special education assistant/multi-cat I 
Letitia Brannen Central Office/Finance Administrative assistant 
Katherine Ventura-Irizarry Central Office/Instruction Administrative assistant/ESOL welcome center 
Sara Basurto Dutchman Creek Special education assistant/multi-cat I 
Heidi Hunsucker Cherry Park Behavior management assistant 
Jefflyn Cooper Dutchman Creek Secretary/guidance clerk 
Christopher Ard Facilities Services General services worker 
Joseph Bridges Facilities Services Security systems technician 
Stephanie Woody Mt. Holly Kindergarten assistant 
Wayne Hinton Northwestern Media assistant 
Nicole Drakeford Rosewood Kindergarten assistant 

 
RESIGNATIONS – NON-CERTIFIED (3) 

 
Barbara Puckett Central Child Development Ctr. Special education assistant/resource 
Wendi Bojanowski Cherry Park Special education assistant/resource 
Carol Westbrook Rosewood Special education assistant/multi-cat I 

 
 
 
 
 
 



TRANSFERS – NON-CERTIFIED (3) 
 

Ernestine Green Finley Road Special education assistant/multi-cat II 
Kimberly Woods Rosewood Special education shadow assistant 
Lisa Waters York Road Kindergarten assistant 

 
EMPLOYEE WORKING THROUGH SCECG 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE (1) 

 
William E. Robinson Facilities Services Trades manager 

 









































 
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Dr. William Cook 
 
FROM: Luanne Kokolis 
 
CC: Board Members 
 
DATE: September 19, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: C Policies for 2nd Read 
 
 
 
Attached are the C policies for Board review for 2nd read.   



Rock Hill School District Three of York County  

Section C 

SCHOOL DISTICT ADMINISTRATION 

 

CA 
Administration Goals/Priority Objectives  
Last Revision 1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CB 
School Superintendent – Last Revision 

1999 
Recommending SCSBA Model 

CBA 
Qualifications of the Superintendent – 
Last Revision 1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CBC 
Superintendent Powers and 
Responsibilities – Last Revised 1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CBD 
Superintendent’s Contract – Last Revised 
1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CBG 
Superintendent’s Professional 
Development – Last Revised 1999 

Recommending Current 

CBI 
Evaluation of Superintendent – Last 
Revised 1998 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CC 
Administrative Organization -  Last 
Revised 1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CCA Organization Chart - New Recommending SCSBA Model 

CCB 
Line and Staff Relations – Last Revised 
1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CF 
School Building Administration – Last 
Revised 2007 

No SCSBA Model – Recommending 
Replace with CFA 

CFA 
School Principals/Building 
Administration – Last Revised 1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CFC 
Assignment and Transfer of School 
Administrators 

No current policy – Recommending 
SCSBA Model 

CHA/CHB 
Development of Administrative 
Rules/Board Review – Last Revised 
1999 

Current – No Model; Recommend No 
Revisions Needed 

CH 
Policy Implementation – Last Revised 
1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

CHD 
Administration in the Absence of Policy 
– Last Revised 1999 

No Model; Covered in Policy CBC; 
Recommend Eliminate 

CM 
School District Annual Report – Last 
Revised 1999 

Recommending SCSBA Model 

   

 



























































































   

  Finance 
  V:  803-981-1083    F:  803-980-2017 
 

 

  

 

Memo 
 

TO: Dr. Bill Cook 

FROM: Terri Smith 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

SUBJECT: Revision of “D” Board Policies (Fiscal Management) Batch 1 for 1st Read    

  

 

A stakeholder team comprised of the following individuals has been developed to review and 

revise the “D” board policies – Fiscal Management.   

 

 Terri Smith, Central Office Finance 

 Bettina Feaster, Central Office Finance 

 Beth Lifsey, Central Office Finance  

 LaWana Robinson-Lee, Facilities Services Purchasing 

 Michael Johnson, Safety & Security 

 Gary Black, Food Service 

 Christopher Roorda, India Hook Elementary 

 Elissa Cox, Saluda Trail Middle 

 Hezekiah Massey, Northwestern High 

 Joanne Pafford, Oakdale Elementary Bookkeeper 

 Susan Fowler, Castle Heights Middle Bookkeeper 

 Melanie Cook, Rock Hill High Bookkeeper 

 Larry Finney, Greene Finney, LLC. 

 Mike Downing, Greene Finney, LLC. 

 

Dr. Tiffany Richardson with S.C. School Boards Association is providing guidance and 

reviewing recommended revisions.    

 

The policies listed below were presented at the September 9th board work session.  There has 

been additional revisions since the September 9th board work session which are shown in blue 

text, as well as listed below in the recommendation column in blue text.  Administration 

requests approval of batch 1 of D Policies for 1st read. 

 

 



   

   
 

 2 

Policy Recommendation 

DA – Fiscal Management 

Goals/Priority Objectives 

Remove purpose statement.  Recommend adopting model 

policy.   

DB – Annual Budget Remove purpose statement. Recommend adopting model 

policy with a few minor changes for general fund balance and 

millage increase limitations.  Added legal references.  One 

change from 9/9/19 work session to reflect “prior year’s budget” 

instead of “last year’s budget”.  

DBD – Determination of Budget 

Priorities 

No individual model policy.  Recommend eliminating policy as 

information is combined with model and proposed policy DB. 

DBF – Budget Hearings and 

Reviews 

No individual model policy.  Recommend eliminating policy as 

information is combined with model and proposed policy DB. 

DBG – Budget Adoption Process No individual model policy.  Recommend eliminating policy as 

information is combined with model and proposed policy DB. 

DFAC – Fund Balance Remove purpose statement.  Revised the necessity for a 

sufficient fund balance.  Revised general fund balance target 

and debt service sinking fund balance.  Added legal references. 

ED/DID – Materials and Equipment 

Inventories Management 

Add ‘his/her designee’ after superintendent in each paragraph.   

ED/DID-R – Materials and 

Equipment Inventories Management 

No proposed changes. 

ED/DID-E(1) – Rock Hill Schools 

Inventory Control Decision Tree 

No proposed changes. 

ED/DID-E(2) – Materials and 

Equipment Check Out Form 

No proposed changes. 

DJGA – Sales Calls and 

Demonstrations 

Remove purpose statement.  Recommend adopting model 

policy. 

DKA – Payroll 

Procedures/Schedules 

Remove purpose statement.  No other proposed changes. 

DM – Cash in School Buildings Remove purpose statement.  Few revisions to clarify locations, 

food service required bank deposits, and all money collected 

during the day must be given to school office.  One change 

since 9/9/19 to add “classrooms, offices” and replace “shall” 

with “must”. 

DN – School Properties Disposition Remove purpose statement.  No other proposed changes.  One 

change since 9/9/19 to remove legal references within the body 

of the policy per Dr. Tiffany Richardson. 

 











































































Memo 
 
TO: Board of Trustees  

 

FROM: Dr. Bill Cook, Superintendent 

 

DATE: September 19, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: Policy FF – Naming Facilities 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

For the past 125 years Comporium has provided world-class telecommunication 

services to the people of Rock Hill, and Rock Hill Schools has provided world-class 

graduates to Rock Hill, the state and beyond.  Our partnership is rooted in our common 

history, tradition and shared focus we have on building a better future for our 

community. 

 

We were so excited to join the fabric of Old Town and have Comporium as our 

corporate neighbor when we moved into our Central Office building in 2018.  We were 

also grateful for the corporate donation given to the school district in our first year at 

386 East Black Street.   

 

As discussed previously, the intent of the donation was to support the outfitting of our 

new district facility with the latest electronic equipment to support its’ design functions 

of training our teachers and administering support to our schools.  During discussions 

in 2017, Cabinet staff jointly envisioned using the donation for state-of-the-art 

equipment for our conference rooms, collaboration areas and our large training and 

board meeting rooms on the first floor.  Specifically, the inclusion of a large screen 

video messaging system for our lobby and room-based video messaging panels to 

optimize event information, space management and emergency communication.  We 

agreed to have these features powered by Hypersign® digital signage software.  



Headquartered in South Carolina, this partner provides a superior solution which 

enables our entire building to be a “smart” center for educator preparedness and 

community engagement. 

 

In recognition of the substantial donation and pursuant to Board Policy FF – Naming 

Facilities, we recommend the large first floor training and meeting rooms be named 

“Comporium Conference Center,” for a period of ten (10) years.  Rooms A, B, and C 

remain named as Conference Rooms A, B, and C.  With this agreement, Comporium 

would be allowed to use the space and rooms on an as-available and scheduled basis 

free of any facility use fees during this period. 

 

We remain grateful to Comporium for their continued support of public education and 

the Rock Hill School District.   

 



 

 

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: September 18, 2019  
SUBJECT: Announcements for September 23rd School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
National Merit Semi-Finalists 
We are pleased to announce that for the second consecutive year, our district has three National Merit Semi-
Finalist. The following students have recently received notice that they have advanced to the next step in the 
prestigious National Merit Scholarship Program:  

• Benjamin Michael Gregory – Northwestern High School 

• Courtney Stuart – Rock Hill High School 
• Nolan Promin – Rock Hill High School 

The National Merit Scholarship Program is an academic scholarship competition for recognition and university 
scholarships administered by the National Merit Scholarship Corporation, a privately funded, not-for-profit 
organization based in Evanston, Illinois. We wish each student well and look forward to recognizing them in the 
spring when finalists are announced. 
 
Teacher Listen and Learn Series 
District leaders will host the first Teacher Listen and Learn informational session for teachers from across the 
district on Thursday, September 26 at Cherry Park Elementary School of Language Immersion.  The series of 
meetings will continue each month and will provide a rich opportunity to engage in dialogue with teachers 
about celebrations, issues and concerns for our school district.  
 
Master Plan Community Input Presentations 
In the weeks ahead, district leaders will continue seeking input on the 10-Year Facilities Master Plan through 
presentations to civic, community, and district organizations. Recently, presentations were shared with area real 
estate agents at our annual Realtor Lunch and Learn and at the Applied Technology Center Advisory Council. 
Upcoming presentations include tomorrow’s District Leadership Meeting, the York County Regional Chamber of 
Commerce on October 1, the Rock Hill Economic Development Council on October 1, and the Rotary Club of 
Rock Hill on October 24.  Additional meetings will be shared as schedules are finalized.  We are actively working 
to share information and seek feedback from other groups.  
 
Follow Capital Program Updates 
You are encouraged to visit the district's capital building program, "Build on the Rock," website – www.rock-
hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock -- for more information on capital projects. The website provides status updates 
on active and planned construction projects in the district. On the page, viewers can see project descriptions, 
before and after photographs, and construction timelines.  
 
 
 

Marketing & Communications Department 

Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/site/Default.aspx?PageID=6071
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/site/Default.aspx?PageID=6071
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/site/Default.aspx?PageID=6071
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/site/Default.aspx?PageID=6071


 

 

Upcoming Board Meetings 
The School Board will next meet on Monday, October 14 for its work session and on Monday, October 28 for its 
business meeting. Both meetings will streamed on our website and available for viewing on-demand 
immediately following each broadcast. We invite our community to watch meetings live on our Facebook 
broadcasts at Facebook.com/RockHillSchools.  



 

At its work session on September 9,  2019, held at the Central Office, the Board: 

 

• held a Board Professional Development session;  

 

• held introductions and recognitions; 

 

• received a report on Career & Technology Education and Programs; 

 

• viewed the Back-to-School Video; 

 

• reviewed Policies GBED and JICG; 

 

• reviewed Section “C” Policies; 

 

• reviewed Section “D” Policies 

 

• reviewed an out of the continental U.S. field study request; 

 

• received an Elementary Safety Security Officers Update; 

 

• received an Exceptional Student Education update; 

 

• discussed other and future business; and, 

 

• held an executive session for personnel matters and contractual matters. 

 

 

 

 

 



Other and Future Business   Helena Miller 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



Executive  Session  

• Contractual Matters    
➢ Intergovernmental Agreement 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda 9 23 19
	Call to Order
	Recognitions 9.23.2019
	MINUTES Work Session 8 12 19
	MINUTES Business Meeting 8 26 19
	Personnel Report
	Field Study Request
	Additional Policy Feedback
	Policies GBED, JICG
	Board memo C policies (003)
	8 1 Revision Chart - C (1)
	8 2 C policies second read (003)
	Memo - First Read D Policies Fiscal Management
	1 PDF of policies for packet
	2 PDF of policies for packet
	3 PDF of policies for packet
	4 PDF of policies for packet
	5 PDF of policies for packet
	Board Packet Memo Naming Facilities 9 19 19
	Announcements 9.23.19
	Review of September 9 2019 Work Session
	Other and Future Business
	Executive Session

